WHITE’S HISTORY, GAZETTEER AND DIRECTORY OF STAFFORDSHIRE, 1851

CHURCH EATON is a long village, consisting principally of one street of detached but well-built houses, pleasantly situated, 6 miles S.W. by W. of Stafford, and the same distance W. by N. of Penkridge.  Its parish contains 743 inhabitants, and about 4930 acres of land, divided into four liberties or constablewicks, viz., Church Eaton with Sushions farm; Wood Eaton with Orslow; High Onn; and Little Onn with Marston; which repair their roads separately, but maintain their poor conjointly.   The soil is generally fertile, having a good strong loam, both in the meadows and uplands.  John Morris, Esq., is lord of the manor and owner of most of the soil, but here are several smaller owners, and Earl Talbot is patron of the rectory, valued in K.B. at £14. 19s. 9 ½ d., and now at £976, in the incumbency of the Hon. and Rev. A. C. Talbot, M.A., who has a good residence.  The Church (St. Edith,) is an ancient structure, in the Saxon style of architecture, with a low tower, supporting a spire of modern erection.  The south side of the building likewise appears to have been rebuilt in modern times, from the square form of its windows. The organ was given by the rector.  On the S. side of the churchyard stands the Grammar School, which is free to all the boys of the parish, and is of unknown origin; though from an early period it has possessed several houses and other outbuildings, with about 92 acres of land, in Church and Wood Eaton, now let for £198 per annum.  As classical lore is of little use to the major part of the parishioners, no regular classical master is appointed, but Mr. John Pickin, the under master, receives abut £50 a year, for instructing about forty free scholars in English reading, writing and arithmetic.


BENEFACTIONS.- In 1692, five closes of land, containing 33 acres and 10 perches in the parishes of Gnosall and Haughton were purchased with charity money belonging to the parishes of Gnosall and Church Eaton.  This estate is let for £42 per annum, out of which £3 is paid to Gnosall, and the remainder is equally divided between that parish and Church Eaton, for distribution on Good Friday and St. Thomas’s day.  John Astley, in 1645, left 10 shillings a year, out of land in Salt moor, for the reparation of the roads of Church and Wood Eaton.  Two annuities of 26 shillings each, left by Thomas Blake, in 1685, and Walter Jennings, in 1723, are applied in weekly distributions of bread.  In 1730, Henry Crockett left £200, which was laid out in the purchase of a house and 7 ½ acres of land at Little Haywood, which was sold to the railway company, and the money laid out in land in this parish.  In 1731, Ralph Macclesfield left £10, and in 1765, it was laid out in the purchase of a croft, on which the parish Workhouse was built, in 1798.

High Onn contains 686 acres, divided into three farms,1 mile W. by S. of Church Eaton.  T. W. Giffard, Esq., owns the greater part of it, and the rest belongs to the heirs of the late Matthew Parkes, Esq.

Little Onn hamlet comprises 870 acres of land, 1 ½ mile S. of Church Eaton, and is the sole property of Charles Ashton, Esq., who has a pleasant seat here called Rye hill House.  He also owns Wollaston liberty, in Bradley parish, by purchase from the Crocketts, formerly seated here.

Marston comprises a scattered village, and 364 acres of land, 2 miles S. of Church Eaton.  It belongs to T. Perry, Esq., and others, but is in the manor of Lapley.

Orslow is a hamlet, with three farms, 3 miles S.W. of Church Eaton, belonging to the Earl of Bradford and Mr. H. Webb.

Wood Eaton hamlet comprises three farms and a few cottages, half a mile N.W. of Church Eaton. John Morris, Esq., owns all the land, except a small estate belonging to the Grammar School.

In the following DIRECTORY those marked 1 are at High Onn, 2 Little Onn, 3 Marston, 4 Orslow, 5 at Wood Eaton, and the others at Church Eaton

Allcock Mr. John

2 Ashton Charles Esq., Rye hill House and Newton moor, Lancashire

Bird John, saddler, etc

Broadhurst William Ward, relieving officer

Grosvenor James, butcher

Holt Edward, shoemaker

Keith James, sub-inspector of police

Kibble John, agricultural machine maker

Pickin John, Free schoolmaster

Smith Edward, tailor

Stevenson Charles, builder and parish clerk

Talbot Hon. and Rev. Arthur Chetwynd, M.A., rector and rural dean, Rectory

Wyley James, land agent, High Onn Hall

Inns and taverns

5 Maltshovel, Samuel Kinnersley

New Inn, John Kibble

5 Royal Oak, John Heath

Swan, Francis Holt

Blacksmiths

Addison Charles

5 Machin George

2 Vickers Joseph

Farmers

Bennett Thomas

Cotterell H., Wood Eaton Hall

4 Hall W Reynolds

5 Haynes John (and wharfinger)

Kibble Thomas

5 Martin Thomas

4 Meddens Thomas

5 Parkes George

2 Perry John and Thomas

3 Riley William

3 Rowlands William (and maltster)

2 Smith Thomas Cartwright, Hall

1 Swann James

Walters William

4 Webb Humphrey

1 Wright Sampson

1 Wyrley James

Grocers, etc

Haynes Thomas

Holt Henry

Kibble John

Wheelrights

5 Cartwright Thomas

5 Cartwright William

5 Parker William

4 Stacey Joseph

Post office

at Henry Holt’s. Letters despatched 4. 30 afternoon by foot post to Stafford.

Carriers

to Stafford, Saturday 

James Mary

Machin George

Parker William

